
MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
COMBINED BUSINESS MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, MAY 22,2018 

Call to Order 

The Business Meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to order at 
7:00p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Howell and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Mr. Angel. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
James E. Hosfelt, Jr. 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Vice President - Absent 
Commissioner 
President 

There are six (6) Commissioners present; one (1) absent at roll call. 
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Adoption of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda as presented was made by Mr. Angel; seconded 
by Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call vote six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 

Consent Agenda 18-9 
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and/or non-controversial and 
will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Levy Court. There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which 
event the items shall be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately under New Business. 
• Levy Court Business Meeting Minutes of Tuesday, May 8, 2018 
• Items from the May 15, 2018 Committee Meetings: 

o Patient Care Monitoring System (PCMS) Contract Philips Cardiac 
Monitor/Defibrillator/Pacemaker/12 Lead EKG Devices 

o Pulse Point 
o Chemical Contract - Quicklime - Bid Award 
o Trap-Neuter-Return Proposal, Faithful Friends 
o Community Events Grant Request - Milford Chamber of Commerce 
o Community Events Grant Request- NCALL Research, Inc. 

Mr. Sweeney: I Move to approve Consent Agenda 18-9 and before I get a 
second I'd like to bring to the audience's attention that one of the items among the 
very good things that are on this Consent Agenda is Levy Court agreeing to a new 
trap/neuter and return proposal by Faithful Friends to start to address some of the 
feral cat colonies that exist in our County. It ends up in Consent Agenda because 
we all agreed on it and it doesn't need any public input but I wanted to make sure 
you guys were aware of it. It didn't get much play in the newspapers that I hoped 
it would, so hopefully we can get the word out there; seconded by Mr. Howell; 
carried by roll call vote six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Employee of the Month - June 2018 

Kent County Department Heads have selected Roxanne L. Parsons from the 
Department of Community Services as the June 2018 Employee ofthe Month. 

Roxanne has worked for Kent County since June 2015 and now serves as a Clerk 
at the Recreation Center after previously working as a Custodian in the Facilities 
Management Division. Her primary duties include assisting customers at the Rec 
Center service window, answering telephones, providing information about parks 
& recreation programming, and routine clerical duties. 
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Roxanne is praised by her supervisors for her superior customer service skills and 
willingness to help out wherever needed. Her ability to remain focused and handle 
multiple tasks simultaneously in a very busy work environment is unmatched. 

According to Community Services Director Jeremy Sheppard, "Roxanne has 
been a positive addition to the Parks and Recreation office. Her customer service 
skills are excellent and projects a positive image of the County. Roxanne deals 
with a lot of distraction from her post and handles the day to day business with 
focus and clarity. Her friendly demeanor and determination to assist all customers 
makes her a model employee." 

Congratulations Roxanne on a job well done! Roxanne resides in Commissioner 
Buckson' s and Pepper's districts. 

Ms. Tanaka concluded with reading the tribute into the record. 

Ms. Parsons met the Commissioners and County Administrator at the front for 
presentation of the award, congratulatory remarks and photos. 

Mr. Banta: Well, Roxanne it's not a challenge to say anything good about you 
because it's all good. I mean you are an outstanding employee. *Inaudible* 
Anyway, an honor well deserved and Employee of the Month you may certainly, 
hopefully get a check in December if you come out to be the winner. 

Jeremy Sheppard: Roxanne has a very tough job at the rec center being right in 
the middle of everything in what they like to call the aquarium. She actually is a 
very good face not only for Kent County but for the Boys and Girls Club because 
constantly we get questions about the Boys and Girls Club at our desk because we 
are the first ones there. She handles everything with grace; with confidence, she's 
approachable and very kind to all of the people that come into the rec center 
which is very good for the County. Thank you on behalf of everybody at 
Community Services. You do a great job and we look forward to more ofthat as 
long as you can do it. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Sweeney: Roxanne, Jeremy says how much you do over there but most 
everybody here doesn't realize how much goes on at that gym during the day. 
When they mention all the tasks that you do that's only half of it. You're asked to 
do things that other people .. .it's beyond what other people are asked to do. 
That's the kind of employees we love here at Kent County Levy Court. You guys 
are flexible, work hard and you have produced the Parsons family that keeps 
giving back. Every quarter we have a Parsons in here and that's fantastic. 
Congratulations and keep it up. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Speaking of the tasks that you do, one of the biggest tasks 
that Roxanne has is keeping track of my buddy here Jeremy. Because I often call 
the rec center looking for Jeremy and Roxanne will answer the phone and she's 
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always gracious, as you mentioned, very pleasant and she usually tracks you 
down so I greatly appreciate that aspect of your service. On behalf of all your 
fellow County employees I just want to say congratulations and thank you for 
your service. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Ma'am, we appreciate everything you do on behalf of Kent County 
and obviously thank you for being the face of the rec center over there. Thank 
you and congratulations. 

Mr. Howell: Great reputation; glad you're with us. 

Mr. Angel: Thank you for making us look good and keep making us look good. 
Thank you very much. 

Mr. Buckson: Same thing and importance of the fish bowl and the connection 
with the community is vital so I appreciate your efforts and I would encourage 
you to continue with that. Because I get it; I'm sure you're getting questions that 
are constantly, consistently (inaudible) over there but any type of interaction with 
the community itself is a reflection on the County. You're obviously doing it 
well, keep it up. Appreciate you. Thank you. 

Ms. Parsons: My husband said I should sit in your seat when I do it too. But 
actually he said I should not take the microphone but I'm doing it anyway. I just 
want to say thank you to everyone and that I feel very blessed first of all that I 
have a job, second of all that I get to have that job at the County. I have some 
really great people that I get to work with and that I get to work for. When I serve 
it's very natural for me. I was born to be of service so to get this honor doing 
what I love to do with people I enjoy doing it with is very humbling to me. I 
thank you for that. 

Resolution 3695- Retirement of Deborah S. Moore 

The following was read into the record by Ms. Tanaka: 

Whereas, the retirement of Deborah S. Moore, an employee of Kent County, 
State of Delaware, from her duties as Deed Clerk II, Recorder of Deeds Office, 
presents a suitable opportunity for expressing the esteem in which we hold 
Deborah S. Moore, as a good and faithful public servant. 

Therefore, be it resolved that the County of Kent express its' warmest 
appreciation and thanks to Deborah S. Moore for the able and loyal manner 
in which she performed her public duties. 

Be it further resolved that this resolution be her evidence of a right to the pension 
provided by the Kent County Employees' Retirement Program; and that this 
Resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the official minutes of the May 22, 
2018 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 



M-18-099 

5 05/22/2018 

Motion made and seconded to approve Resolution 3695; carried by roll call vote 
six ( 6) yeas; one (1) absent. 

Ms. Moore joined the Commissioners and County Administrator at the front. 

Mr. Banta: So Debbie, you certainly have been a faithful and loyal employee. 
We appreciate your years of service. I took the time tonight and was able to add it 
up, without a computer and without an adding machine, the number of years of 
service for the four (4) people that are getting retirement tonight? It's 83 years of 
service to the County. Not you, you've only got 15 but that's okay, we 
appreciate your service. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Debbie, I just want to say congratulations on behalf of your 
fellow employees. I met Debbie years ago. Her father had a business in 
downtown called the Center City Deli and I was a frequent flyer there and Loren 
Becker was a really nice man and we see how you come by your traits naturally; 
hardworking, pleasant, you've been a great employee; we really appreciate what 
you've done here. I talked to you the other day and you said you've got plans to 
travel, I hope you have a wonderful retirement. Wish I was going to Austria too, 
sounds awesome, congratulations. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Congratulations on your years of services. We appreciate 
everything you did for Kent County. 

Mr. Sweeney: Like I said, I wish I was you. That's the biggest compliment I can 
give for your years of service here. You've done a wonderful job and we 
appreciate it and the County is worse off without you. 

Mr. Howell: So rumor has it that now you're retiring from the County you're 
going to join the Marine Corp, is that true? Okay, just another one of those 
rumors. Wish you the best. Are you staying around here? Good, very good, 
alright, see you again. 

Mr. Angel: Well Deb we go way, way back to when your brother and I went to 
high school together as a matter of fact. And like you said, you worked for your 
father at Center City Delicatessen where I also was a frequent flyer. But I still 
think you're too young to retire but because of the situation you need to get out 
and do things and I hope you enjoy it because you deserve it. 

Mr. Buckson: Not much left to say. Congratulations; enjoy yourself. You've 
earned it. Thank you very much. 

Ms. Moore: I just want to say I've enjoyed working here for the County and it's 
been a great pleasure and I have only good things to say about it. Thank you. 
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Resolution 3696 - Retirement of William M. Ward 

Ms. Tanaka read the following into the record: 

Whereas, the retirement of William M. Ward, an employee of Kent County, 
State of Delaware, from his duties as Planning Supervisor, Department of 
Planning Services, Planning Division, presents a suitable opportunity for 
expressing the esteem in which we hold William M. Ward, as a good and faithful 
public servant. 

Therefore, be it resolved that the County of Kent express its' warmest 
appreciation and thanks to William M. Ward for the able and loyal manner 
in which he performed his public duties. 

Be it further resolved that this resolution be his evidence of a right to the pension 
provided by the Kent County Employees' Retirement Program; and that this 
Resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the official minutes of the May 22, 
2018 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 

Motion made and seconded to approve Resolution 3696; carried by roll call vote 
six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 

Mr. Ward joined the Commissioners and County Administrator at the front for 
a hearty farewell and photos. 

Mr. Banta: For 22 years you've been a loyal and faithful servant to the County 
and you've certainly done your job well for the Commissioners; when the calls 
are made you're there to respond. Heartiest congratulations on your retirement; 
it's well deserved... Well, semi-retired, but enjoy yourself, enjoy your family, 
enjoy your ... Did you ever get another dog or no? Well, he ought to figure it out 
by now. Teach him. 

Mr. Sweeney: Mike, a lot of knowledge walking out the door with you. For your 
retirement from Kent County, I think you've got a lot of years ahead of you, you 
get a retirement from someplace else; that would be fantastic. But what we're 
losing tonight is ... you just can't put a number on it. But congratulations, you've 
been a great asset to the County. I wish you all the luck in your retirement from 
Kent County. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Congratulations sir on your semi-retirement. Thank you. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Mike, we go back a long ways. When I came to the County 
in 1985 Mike had already been here five years and he knew the County kind of 
like the back ... palm of his hand. He has passed, or I've passed him in the white 
hair department I guess. I don't know how that happened. But Mike, when we 
first started working together, the County roads didn't have names like they do 
today, they were all numbers. Mike was the one in the department who knew 
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where all the roads were. You know, if you wanted to know where County Road 
182 was Mike had it in his brain; he knew right where it was. He was responsible 
for getting all the signs up for all the applications and everything when we had to 
post properties. One of my early jobs was to go with Mike and kind of ride 
around. We'd be out in the middle of nowhere and I wouldn't know where we 
were. And no matter what day it was, and we did this a couple of times a month, 
usually around noon time we ended up close to his mother's house in Milford 
where she would have lunch all prepared for us. It was a great benefit for 
working with the County. I still don't know how he mentally mapped all that out 
but he kind of translated that into his GIS work in understanding the connectivity, 
where all the places are in the County and kind of using that to build our mapping 
system that he's worked on over the course of his career here. So, Mike, I'll stop 
there ... pardon me? I didn't want to get into that. He did have this huge, huge 
Rottweiler ... oh, it was a Doberman, okay, a little smaller I guess and when I 
would go to his mother's house we would be eating lunch the dog would sit, it 
would be about this tall sitting down, and it would just sit there and growl at me 
the whole time. Congratulations Mike. 

Mr. Howell: Retirement's great, glad you made it, wish you the best. 

Mr. Angel: Well Mike, we go way back too. For those that don't know, I was a 
videographer for weddings also and had a business and Mike's was the biggest 
wedding ... that was my calling card, yes. Mike's was the biggest wedding I think 
Dover had ever seen and has since, including horse-drawn carriages and a whole 
police escort. You brought a lot of class to Delaware and Dover that day and I 
just want to say thank you for giving me that opportunity. Over the years our 
friendship has gone on and on and on and I'm going to miss it. I will be calling 
you when I need you, as always. 

Mr. Buckson: Mike, similar to everything that's been said I just want to point out 
nearly 40 years of service to Kent County. That's something special. But to say 
that and to do that, that's something special. That's a commitment, a dedication; I 
don't care what line of work you're in, that's very impressive. You've seen a lot 
and you've done a lot and for that I think the County's grateful for your years of 
service. I know I am. I wish you all the best. I know you said semi-retired but I 
can envision a few more days of just chilling. Because I know I could and I'm 
not close to 40. I thought I was a long way but I'm not close to 40. Anyway, 
thank you. Appreciate you Mike, mean that. 

Mr. Ward: One individual I'd like to thank is My Lord and Savior Jesus Christ 
for getting me through a number of things both personal and otherwise. Michael, 
I think of you like a brother. Brooks, like a brother, Allan like a brother because 
we've known each other for so long. One individual I want to thank and 
unfortunately he is not among us at this time is one of the ones who most inspired 
me and he was one hell of a Director, Robert W. O'Brien. He's the one who hired 
me, he's the one who gave me the chance and I've worked with a great number of 
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people. Back here I see some colleagues, not colleagues but individuals I worked 
with over the years, Mark Schaeffer, Gary Dodge. They were kind enough to 
come over and thank me and congratulate me. County's going to be missed but 
I'm not so far away. I'm looking forward to working with Reid, getting back with 
him. He's already given me one book, one CD and I don't know how many 
emails. I've got a lot to catch up on. Thank you Kent County, Levy Court's been 
good to me, not only you seven but 24 before you. 

Resolution 3697 - Retirement of Alex Argo IV 

Ms. Tanaka read the following Resolution into the record: 

Whereas, the retirement of Alex Argo IV, an employee of Kent County, State 
of Delaware, from his duties as Heavy Equipment Operator II, Department of 
Public Works, Wastewater Facilities Division, presents a suitable opportunity for 
expressing the esteem in which we hold Alex Argo IV, as a good and faithful 
public servant. 

Therefore, be it resolved that the County of Kent express its' warmest 
appreciation and thanks to Alex Argo IV for the able and loyal manner in 
which he performed his public duties. 

Be it further resolved that this resolution be his evidence of a right to the pension 
provided by the Kent County Employees' Retirement Program; and that this 
Resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the official minutes of the May 22, 
2018 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 

Motion was made and seconded to approve Resolution 3697; carried by roll call 
vote six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 

***Mr. Argo was not present for the presentation of the Resolution*** 

Resolution 3698 - Retirement of Wallace P. Wootten, Jr. 

The following was read into the record by Ms. Tanaka: 

Whereas, the retirement ofWallace P. Wootten, Jr., an employee of Kent 
County, State of Delaware, from his duties as Heavy Equipment Operator, 
Department of Public Works, Wastewater Facilities Division, presents a suitable 
opportunity for expressing the esteem in which we hold Wallace P. Wootten, Jr. 
as a good and faithful public servant. 

Therefore, be it resolved that the County of Kent express its' warmest 
appreciation and thanks to Wallace P. Wootten, Jr. for the able and loyal manner 
in which he performed his public duties. 
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Be it further resolved that this resolution be his evidence of a right to the pension 
provided by the Kent County Employees' Retirement Program; and that this 
Resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the official minutes of the May 22, 
2018 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 

Motion was made and seconded to approve Resolution 3698; carried by roll call 
vote six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 

The Commissioners and County Administrator were joined by Mr. Wootten at the 
front for congratulatory remarks and photos. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Wally, I want to congratulate you on this momentous 
occasion, retirement. You were just here last month receiving the Employee of 
the Month and now you're leaving? Does this disqualify him for the $500.00 
check? Somehow it just doesn't see right but obviously you've been recognized 
twice in a short period of time, once as being an outstanding employee and now as 
an employee that's going to be out, standing. Congratulations and wish you all 
the best in your retirement. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Mr. Wootten, thank you for everything you've done. 
Congratulations on your retirement. 

Mr. Sweeney: Roxanne Parsons just said her odds went up to one in 11 instead of 
one in 12. Congratulations for your years of service, Wally, it's been a pleasure 
working with you. 

Mr. Banta: You've been an outstanding employee. We're glad to have you. 
Sorry you are leaving but it is what it is. Thank you very much for your service. 

Mr. Howell: We do appreciate all that you've done. Hate to see you go but I'm 
sure that you'll enjoy retirement. 

Mr. Angel: Thank you for your outstanding service and I'm sorry to see you go 
too. 

Mr. Buckson: I'm still cracking up on that one. Anyway, very nice job; well 
done. You've certainly earned it so enjoy yourself in your retirement okay? 
Appreciate you. 

Resolution 3693, Safe Summer Day 

Motion was made and seconded to approve Resolution 3693; carried by roll call 
vote six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 

Resolution 3693 was read into the record by Ms. Tanaka: 

Whereas, Safe Summer Day was started in 1998 by a Delaware State Police 
Officer, and a Kent County Paramedic to teach adults and children fire 
prevention, pool safety, poison prevention, and fire extinguisher training, while 
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also providing parents and opportunity to have their child's car safety seats 
inspected for proper use and care at no cost, and; 

Whereas, Safe Summer Day was initially held in the Rodney Village parking lot, 
and drew only 50 visitors, it is now held annually at Brecknock County Pak, 
exceeding well over 3,000 attendees, and; 

Whereas, Safe Summer Day is a program leading into the summer months to 
promote safety by multiple agencies including, Kent County Levy Court, 
Delaware Office of Highway Safety, Delaware State Police, Kent County 
Emergency Medical Services, Delaware Volunteer Firefighter's Association, 
Delaware State Fire School, and many other State and Local agencies. 

Now, therefore be it resolved, that Kent County Levy Court recognizes 
Saturday, June 9, 2018 as the 20th Annual Safe Summer Day and; congratulates 
the Safe Summer Day Committee for their 20 years of dedication and; 

Be it further resolved that this Resolution be adopted this 22nd day of May 2018, 
and is hereby incorporated into the official minutes of the Kent County Levy 
Court. 

A number of paramedics came forward for the presentation of the Resolution. 

Mr. Banta: So it's really enthusiastic to see such a diverse group of people who 
does such a great job for saving people's lives as well as Safe Summer Day, a 
program which has gone on for, which you know for 20 years. So very 
impressive to have all of you here, that is ALL of you here. And with that I'll be 
quiet and let the County Administrator make some comments. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: We just want to again that you for your work on this project. 
This is an annual event that a lot of people look forward to every year and I know 
I'll be looking forward to getting out there. Hopefully it's not going to be real hot 
like it usually is but it's going to be June so... This is the one time I got a chance 
to ride in a State Police helicopter; I was at Safe Summer Day and I go on board 
and it took me up and I got a nice fly around and everything. That was really 
cool. Hopefully that's the only time I'll have to ride in one. Thank you all for 
what you do and we're looking forward to a great event. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you. I get the chance to work with you a lot throughout the 
year at various events. Safe Summer Day, going back to a previous career I know 
all about it and appreciate everything you do and all the partnerships you create. 
Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: This is a huge organization effort, getting all those groups in there 
and getting them set up in their tents, and timing. You guys are doing a great job. 
Please extend out thanks not only to your four but to the rest of the team that put 
this together. I think that you do a great job; love that it is in my District and in 
my Park. 

Mr. Howell: Appreciate all that you do, glad to have you. 
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Mr. Angel: Appreciate it too and I'm going to be practicing Safe Summer Day by 
staying away because I don't want to reinjure my foot on that uneven ground. So 
I'll be practicing without you ... this will be only the second time I've missed it but 
I'll be thinking of you all. Thank you very much for your hard work and due 
diligence. 

Mr. Buckson: Fantastic job. Of course there's a lot of folks that have come 
together to get this thing done so we appreciate all of them. It's a tremendous 
event, tremendous event, successful, highly successful. It is in Commissioner 
Sweeney's District but it is not in his Park, it is our Park and it is because of you 
guys that our Park looks great. He has a way of putting I in team. 

Paramedic: On behalf of the Safe Summer Day Committee I want to thank the 
people that we have here, Greg Shulties, Kim O'Malley from Delaware State Fire 
School, our supervisory and administrative staff from the County, the 
Commissioners for their support as well as the Kent County Administrator. This 
event started 20 years ago in a parking lot like the Resolution stated, it started 
with a paramedic by the name of Mike Love and the Delaware State Police. They 
thought that they wanted to have some type of kick off to the summer for our 
youth on a positive note. Over the years this has grown (inaudible due to 
microphone moving away). We put on a fantastic event year after year. We 
encourage everyone to come on out and see what we have. Thank you very 
much. 

Resolution 3700, Proclaiming the Month of May as "Community Action Month" 

Ms. Tanaka read this following into the record: 

Whereas, Community Action has put a human face on poverty for 5 years by 
advocating for limited-income citizens without a voice, so that they may enter the 
middle class and reach for the American dream, replacing their despair with 
opportunity; and 

Whereas, Community Action builds and promotes economic stability as an 
essential aspect of enabling and enhancing stronger communities, which in tum 
promotes self-sufficiency, ensuring that all American are able to live in dignity; 
and 

Whereas, Community Action has enhanced the lives of millions of people across 
America by providing essential, life-changing services and opportunities such as 
affordable housing, economic development, health care, energy assistance, natural 
disaster relief and recovery; and 

Whereas, Community Action already serves 99% of America's counties in rural, 
suburban, and urban communities and because it is right, because it is wise, and 
because in our hearts and minds we believe it is possible, we will conquer poverty 
in our lifetime; and 

Whereas, Community Action will continue to implement innovative and cost
effective programs to improve the lives and living conditions to the impoverished; 
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continue to provide support and opportunities for all citizens in need of assistance; 
and continue to be a major voice of reason in establishing welfare system reform; 

Now, therefore be it resolved that the Kent County Levy Court hereby proclaims 
May 2018, as COMMUNITY ACTION MONTH in Kent County, Delaware, in 
recognition of the hard work and dedication of all community action agencies and 
the First State Community Action Agency in the State of Delaware. 

Be it further resolved that this resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the 
official minutes of the May 22, 2018 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 

Motion made and seconded approving Resolution 3700; carried by roll call vote 
six ( 6) yeas; one ( 1) absent. 

A representative came forward to meet with the Commissioners and County 
Administrator for presentation of the Resolution. 

Mr. Banta: It's certainly an honor to have you with us this evening (inaudible) the 
job that you do and replacing despair with opportunity, I think that's a wonderful 
tribute to the organization. We thank you for your service. 

Mr. Sweeney: What you guys do for Kent County and the rest of Delaware is 
fantastic. We know it's needed, we all give back to the community; you guys do 
it ten-fold. We appreciate that service so thank you very much. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you ma'am for everything you do for Kent County and the 
City of Dover as well. Thank you. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: There's a lot of need out there in the community and it's 
folks like your organization that step up and address those needs. We are 
indebted to your service and we want to say thank you and hope it's a great month 
for you. Thank you. 

Mr. Howell: Thank you for everything you do. Thanks for coming down here 
tonight. 

Mr. Angel: Thank you very much. This is a well-deserved and needed service. 

Mr. Buckson: Wonderful tribute. Some of the things that are stated in there 
obviously are things that we encourage and want and I appreciate you coming 
down tonight to represent it, so I thank you very much. 

My name is Vahita Pierce and I sit on the Board of Directors for First State 
Community Action Agency. I would like to give a very humble thank you to 
Kent County Levy Court for your partnership and your support in our efforts to 
eliminate poverty and to replace despair with opportunity and that's on behalf of 
Miss Bernice Edwards and all of the First State Community Action Agency 
employees and workers. Thank you. 
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INTRODUCTIONS 

Mr. Kujala announced that the two new employees, Jacob Reece and Jim Burk, 
both with the Department of Works were scheduled to be introduced by Andrew 
Riggi on behalf of Director of Public Works, Diana Golt. 

Mr. Riggi: Good evening, Commissioners we have only one present, Mr. Jim 
Burk. He was hired on May 14th; he's filling the Environmental Program 
Manager. He comes here with a lot of experience in the wastewater business. He 
previously was working for Severn Trent operating Lewes Board of Public Works 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. Prior to that he has 21 years' experience operating 
the Selbyville Public Works System Wastewater Plant and Water Operations. He 
resides in Sussex County. 

Mr. Burk: Gentlemen, pleasure to be here. I started in wastewater before the 
Clean Water Act was fully approved. Seeing these Boy Scouts tonight really 
brings back memories; I was an Eagle back in those days and that's what led me 
into the environmental aspect of Eagle Scout; it's what led me into the 
environmental field of work. I appreciate the opportunity to serve the County and 
look forward to dealing with you in the future, sir. 

Mr. Banta: Welcome aboard, Jim. We're glad to have you. Thank you very 
much. 

Mr. Burk: Thank you, sir. 

Mr. Riggi: Thank you. 

Mr. Banta: One other comment I'd like to make at this time before moving to the 
official business session of the meeting. Earlier I had the opportunity to speak to 
several Boy Scouts along with Andy and Jerry and they brought the young men 
here this evening. I would like for Andy and Jerry to stand and the Boy Scouts 
that are with us if you would all stand, if you would stand. That means stand up, 
okay? Remember what I told you. A Scout is trustworthy, loyal, helpful, 
friendly, courteous, kind, obedient, cheerful, thrifty, brave, clean and reverent. 
Before you sit down, you remember those words. Let those words guide your 
life. Thank you for your service, thank you Scoutmasters for your time. Thank 
you. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are being conducted for the purpose of 
giving the citizens of the County the opportunity to present testimony on the 
application and ordinances that are before the Levy Court. 

Everyone will have a chance to speak. All statements are to be made from the 
podium at the front ofthe room. For the record, please give your name and 
address. Copies of any written statements or exhibits used during the hearing 
should be presented to for identification and inclusion in the record. 

For each application before the Levy Court: 
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1. The President of Levy Court will introduce the application; 

2. The Levy Court will then receive testimony from those in favor; 

3. Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 

4. After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the 
application will be closed and the Levy Court will then take what action it 
deems appropriate. 

Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony given at this 
meeting a recommendation submitted to the Levy Court by the Regional Planning 
Commission. I would ask that the recommendation be included, by reference, in 
the permanent record of the meeting established by the Clerk of the Peace. 

The Public Notice ofthe Hearing was published in the May 4, 2018 edition of the 
Delaware State News. 

PETITION FOR CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Application#: C-18-01 I Moore's Lake Shopping Center; 

Applicant/Owner: Moore's Lake Shopping Center; Zoning District/ 
Proposed Use: BG (General Business)/Billboard; Area & Location/ 
ID#: 1.1 + acres on the south side of W. Lebanon Rd (DE Rt. 1 0), approx. 
435+ ft. west of South State St. (DE Rt. lOA), east of Camden I NM-00-
09 5. 06-02-03.00-000 

Ms. Keifer: The first application before the Levy Court, C-18-0 1, is a Conditional 
Use Application for a billboard. The site in question is just over an acre on the 
south side of Route 1 0 just west of South State Street, east of Camden inside of 
the growth zone. Currently on the site is a vacant commercial building. It is 
zoned BG (General Business). The Regional Planning Commission took 
testimony at their May 3rd hearing and at their May lOth business meeting voted 
unanimous! y to recommend conditional approval. You'll see some of those 
suggested conditions, the additional conditions the RPC is suggesting and these 
actually came largely at the suggestion of the applicant and those have primarily 
to do with the .. .limiting the change in electronic variable message sign to no 
more than once every 10 seconds ... no less than rather; limiting the brightness 
levels automatically so that they are adjusted to the 0.3 foot candles above 
ambient light and installation of automatic dimmers to maintain the brightness 
measurements required. So again, this comes with a recommendation for 
conditional approval; I'm happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Application LC-18-01 
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In Favor 

Jason Dean, 411 East Railroad Avenue, Felton, DE 19943: Ms. Keifer laid out 
pretty well the facts. We're putting up .. .looking to put up a billboard. I believe 
the RPC approved it to ... their recommendation was to make it a digital board 
where it would change once every 10 seconds. For example, Mr. Sweeney 
indicated that the word hadn't gotten out very well that T & R Cap Program (?) if 
the County chose so they could go up on the billboard and then they could 
advertise their Safe Summer Day Program as well as their Resolution for 
Community Action Month, all under the same contract. With that said, we're 
under restrictions from Del-DOT and Federal Highway Administration rules 
where it can only change once every 10 seconds and must be accomplished within 
less than one second for that change. 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Dean, I'm a little confused about the one side only. Had did 
that come about? 

Mr. Dean: Well, if we could get it two-sided ... So, basically we had done a 
preliminary application with Del-DOT which they require. So, they said, "Well, 
look we feel that South State Street is under the Historic By-ways Act." Well, 
we've had difficulty in finding facts to support that and I'm not sure what the 
County's stance is, whether it's one-sided or two-sided, both being digital. I 
guess I would ask for both sides to be digital and then kind of leave it in the hands 
of Del-DOT; we're bound by what they say anyway. But I mean, if you guys 
would grant us both sides it definitely wouldn't hurt and if Del-DOT then in fact 
did say, "Well, only one side can be because we have found fact that South State 
Street Extended is part ofthe ... " I don't even know, the Corridor Beautification 
something ... So, anyway ... 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Keifer, how did the one side only come about? 

Ms. Keifer: That was a last minute addition by the Planning Commission. No 
additional reasoning was provided at the time ... 

Mr. Sweeney: Did they indicate which way the one side ... 

Ms. Keifer: They did not. 

Mr. Sweeney: ... should be facing, east or west? Was there a compromise or 
just ... 

Ms. Keifer: No. It was an unexpected condition added as part of the motion; 
there was no discussion. 
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Mr. Sweeney: So in reading the RPC minutes, some of the comments that you 
made concerning the sign and the brightness of it, I haven't seen any public 
opposition, nobody from the community has contacted me about the sign so I'm 
pretty sure people were notified. So the brightness would be an issue in the 
middle of the night but you're right next to Royal Farms which already has pretty 
candle watt with their sodium lights ... 

Mr. Dean: Well sure and to your point, and that's a great point, thank you. So 
those lights, their brightness is constantly that brightness where you can't dial that 
back. We're dimmer than what those are. For the advertising to be effective and 
we don't want to be distracting to anyone so the digital board may be an actual 
benefit being two-sided instead of the glaring, bright LED lights that are going to 
be on it that will, you know, in fact not be dimmed down and will be that bright 
continuously all night long. 

Mr. Sweeney: So is the automatic adjustment of the brightness something new to 
these signs? Because we've had a lot of these signs come in front of us and 
obviously nobody's ever said, "Oh, don't worry it will automatically go dim at 8 
o'clock at night when the sun goes down." 

Mr. Dean: Sure, if you look at any that we've installed there's a little sensor on 
them and what they do is they pick up the air temperature as well as the available 
light. With that the sign will adjust down as it gets darker out and as the sun rises 
and the sensor sees more light it will increase its brightness. That way it's 
effective to the viewer not, you know, so it's easier to read not more difficult to 
read. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right, and there is the ability at some point if we do get 
complaints, numerous complaints not just ... numerous complaints from the 
neighbors around the area there is a way that we can adjust this accordingly? 

Mr. Dean: So there's a, so it's automatic but we can also take that automatic and 
dial that percentage back. So, for instance Delaware Electric Co-Op, with their 
sign we had an issue like the first day or two that we had it up. It's a pretty large 
sign and at the same time they put up new parking lot lights because they 
switched everything out from mercury vapor to LED. Well, guess what? The 
parking lot lights were telling the light sensor on the sign that it was daytime and 
for it to be brighter so we went in and adjusted the percentage of brightness back 
down based on the lights that the parking lot lights were throwing to the sign 
itself. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay, other than one condition of limited to one side you 
understand the other conditions that were included and you are okay with that and 
your client's okay with that? 
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Mr. Dean: Yes sir, I believe that the other conditions are ... The 10 seconds, 
which is Del-DOT changing within one second, there's no animation on this, 
there's not going to be fireworks and anything moving. The sign will come up, 
stay still for 10 seconds, change new one's up within less than a second again not 
to be of any distraction to motorists. I believe a lady on RPC said, "Well that one 
there in Frederica, you guys did that? I didn't even realize it was digital." I said, 
"Well, that's kind of what the effect we want." 

Mr. Sweeney: Included in the application was some designs of the shopping 
center that Mr. Schaeffer has there. The sign itself will conform to the same 
design of the shopping center? It's not going to stand out? 

Mr. Dean: We have setbacks. Again, there are conditions of a billboard within 
the County as well as our Del-Dot setback that we must meet. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay. 

Mr. Dean: As well as our side setback. I believe we're conforming to all of your 
standard billboard conditions. 

Mr. Sweeney: Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Dean: But we would appreciate it if we could get your approval for both 
sides to be digital that would be fantastic. Thank you, great questions. 

Mr. Buckson: Mr. Dean, appreciate you being here. I think we can get to the 
point here. I think it's a great project; it's going to do a nice job in that area. I 
think the Levy Court wisely took into consideration the area when the original 
application came in for rezoning, in that area. My understanding from Staff is 
that there is no Del-DOT issue that you're aware of? 

Ms. Keifer: No, I mean Del-DOT will have to issue their own permit but we've 
received no objection from them. 

Mr. Buckson: So my position would be that given that I believe the one house 
that's specifically there is a rental property, not that that matters dramatically but 
it is one. I think I visited with them at one time or another. It's somewhat heavily 
forested, so anyway I'd be in favor of a side of the sign with a double in it if that 
were to be made as part of the motion. 

Mr. Angel: Yes, I agree with Mr. Buckson, economic development is one ofthe 
things we are striving for and advertising both sides of the road would be 
definitely a plus. So I would definitely be in favor of a two-sided sign. 

Mr. Dean: Thank you. 
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In Opposition -None 

Public Hearing Closed on Application C-18-01 

Mr. Sweeney: I make a Motion to conditionally approve Application C-18-0 1, a 
request for a Conditional Use Approval for a Billboard located inside the Growth 
Zone Overlay District on the reasons that there was no public opposition, we 
received RPC approval, Staff approval, they are in compliance with Chapter 205 
Zoning, plus the five additional conditions of: 1) If the billboard is to become an 
electronic variable message sign, which it is the rate of change shall be limited to 
once every 10 seconds to limit any distraction the changing message may cause 
passing motorists; 2) Brightness levels shall be automatically adjusted to be 0.3 
foot candles above ambient light levels; 3) Automatic dimmers to maintain 
brightness measurements are required; 4) Light levels shall be confirmed by the 
applicant and submitted to the County in writing prior to final approval; and 
finally, in the event of a malfunction, an electronic variable message sign as 
defined shall turn to a dark screen. The dark screen shall remain until the 
malfunction is corrected and this motion approves digital signage on both sides of 
the sign; seconded by Mr. Buckson. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, based on no opposition, Mr. Buckson bringing forth the dual 
signage, Mr. Sweeney okaying it, economic development, I vote yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, per all comments made. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the comments already made. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasonable request and no opposition. 

Mr. Pepper: *Absent* 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, per my previous comment. 

Mr. Banta: Based on RPC recommendation, Staff, no opposition and the approval 
of a two-sided sign, I vote yes. 

Roll Call vote reveals six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. Application C-18-01 has 
been approved. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS CLOSED 

OLD BUSINESS -None 

NEW BUSINESS 
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Mr. Buckson: 
1. Re-introduction of Ordinance LC18-02, An Ordinance to amend the 

Comprehensive Plan Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of 
Kent County, Delaware pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, 
Vol. II, Chapter 205 Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, 
and Article XXVIII (changes and amendments) effective, December 01, 
2000, as amended. (Reference: Application: CZ-18-02; 
Applicant/Owner: Murphy, Robert and Catherine) for Public Hearing on 
Tuesday, June 26,2018 at 7 p.m. 

Mr. Hosfelt: 
1. Introduction ofResolution 3694, 2018 Sewer Assessment Rolls for Kent 

County Sewage Disposal District No. 1 (KCSDD No. 1) as listed: 
Bakers Choice, Bowers Beach, Burtonwood Village, Capitol Park, 
Carlisle Village, Cheswold, Colony West, Dover Air Force Base, Dykes 
Branch, East Dover, Felton, Frederica, Garrisons Lake I, Garrisons Lake 
II, Garrisons Lake IV, Garrisons Lake V, Generals Greene, Greater 
Houston-Breeders Crown Farm, Greater Houston-Southfield, Hartly, 
Hilltop, Isaacs, Kenton, Kitts Hummock, Little Creek, Little Heaven, 
Magnolia, Milford Neck Area, North Magnolia, Northeast (NESSD), 
Smyrna/Clayton, South Central, Tidbury for Public Hearing on Tuesday, 
June 12, 2018 at 7:00p.m. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

1. Mr. Sweeney Moved to go into Executive Session immediately following 
the Committee Meetings of June 3, 2018 for preliminary discussion 
on site acquisition for a publicly funded capital improvement; legal 
strategy session regarding collective bargaining or pending or potential 
litigation; and personnel matters pursuant to 29 Del. C. 10004(b) (2), (4), 
and (9); seconded by Mr. Angel; carried by roll call vote six (6) 
yeas; one (1) absent. 

INFORMATION ITEMS - None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS -None 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Petit de Mange, please let the technology team know that the 
wireless is working fantastically. Thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: Just one. Happy to report in the last 10 minutes just got good 
news. Poly Tech made the State Tournament, we are playing Thursday, so yah; 
Wilmington Friends. 
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Mr. Banta: Whose birthday is it? 

Mr. Howell: That's just a rumor. 

A rousing, if off-key rendition of "Happy Birthday" was sung for Mr. Howell. 

Mr. Howell: Mormon Tabernacle Choir you're not but thank you. 

M-18-096 Motion was made to adjourn by Mr. Sweeney; seconded by Mr. Angel; carried 
by roll call vote six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 8:12p.m. 

nda Wootten 
Kent County Clerk of the Peace 


